Corvinus University of Budapest



Doctoral School of Business Administration

## THESIS SUMMARY

## Bogáromi Eszter

Examining consumer acculturation as a function of social and cultural capital among Chinese living in Hungary

of doctoral (PhD) dissertation

Supervisor:

## Dr. Malota Erzsébet

Associate Professor

Budapest, 2021

Department of Marketing Research and Consumer Behaviour

## THESIS SUMMARY

### Bogáromi Eszter

Examining consumer acculturation as a function of social and cultural capital among Chinese living in Hungary

of doctoral (PhD) dissertation

Supervisor:

### Dr. Malota Erzsébet

Associate Professor

©Bogáromi Eszter, 2021

### Contents

1	Bacl	ground and justification to the research topic4
	1.1	Purpose of the dissertation5
	1.2	Description of the concepts and scales used for the dissertation.5
2	Rese	earch methodologies used
	2.1	Research process
	2.2	Research methodology
	2.2.1	Methodology of the qualitative research9
	2.2.2	2 Methodology of the quantitative research
	2.3	Research questions and hypotheses
3	Key	findings and conclusions
	3.1	Results of the qualitative research
	3.2	Results of the quantitative research
	3.2.1	Main features of the model
	3.2.2	2 Results related to Chinese cultural capital
	3.2.3	Results related to Hungarian social capital24
	3.2.4	Results related to cultural capital
	3.2.5	5 Results related to language acculturation
	3.2.6	6 Results related to knowledge and pride acculturation27
	3.2.7	7 Indirect effects
	3.2.8	3 Theoretical and practical contribution
	3.2.9	<ul> <li>Limitations of the research and possible research directions</li> <li>31</li> </ul>
4	Key	citations
5	Publ	ications

# 1 Background and justification to the research topic

According to the Department of Personal Data and Address Registration and Administration of the Ministry of Interior, in 2020 the total number of persons with valid residence permits issued by Hungary was 357,788, including all refugee statuses such as settlement permits, registration certificates, and temporary residence permits. In addition, there is a wide range of persons who have already acquired some form of citizenship or who are living in the country temporarily due to their work, studies or other life situation. It is clear that the group of people from other cultures is large and heterogeneous, and it is therefore impossible to avoid understanding their consumer behaviour. Despite this internal heterogeneity, distinct patterns can be detected in the impressions, reactions, acculturation strategies and behaviour of visitors to our country, which were also examined in our preliminary research.

The aim of this study is to understand the consumer acculturation process and to identify the factors that influence this process. We focus our primary research on the different types of capital based on the underlying research.

### **1.1** Purpose of the dissertation

The aim of this dissertation is to **understand the consumer acculturation of Chinese people living in Hungary.** In examining the process of consumer acculturation, we focus on the social and cultural capital of individuals, and we are interested in the impact of Chinese social capital and Hungarian social capital on the acculturation and consumer acculturation processes. In this paper, we formulate several theses, the evaluation of which is part of the quantitative analysis.

Our research question: does social capital influence the acculturation and consumer acculturation processes of individuals? Does the social capital of the birth culture enhance the retention of the food and culture of the birth country? Alternatively, does the social capital associated with the host culture reinforce the adoption and absorption of the host culture?

# **1.2** Description of the concepts and scales used for the dissertation

In the primary research phase of the dissertation, the concept of culture shock was based on the definition of Samovar et al., which states that "culture shock is a mental state of transition, when we move from a familiar cultural environment to an unfamiliar one and realise that our normative, established patterns of behaviour are ineffective" (Samovar et al., 2000, p 10). In examining acculturation, we followed the theory of Phinney et al. (2001), who formulated a two-dimensional concept; therefore we developed separate questions and scales for both the native and the host culture in our analyses. For the topic of consumer acculturation, we used the model compiled at the end of the technical literature chapter on consumer acculturation, which includes the results of all the literature reviewed (Penaloza 1994, Askegaard et al. 2005, Cleveland and Laroche 2007, Cleveland et al. 2015, Gupta 2016). There is a movement between the types that emerge as a result of the consumer acculturation process, so the consumer acculturation outputs that emerge during our data collection are not considered definitive for the respondents, a shift is possible in the later stages, and our interpretation is along these lines.

The theoretical model used for the quantitative phase of the research is based on validated scales and questions adopted from the literature, which are presented below.

The **measurement of cultural capital** is based on Bourdieu's theory (Bourdieu, 2010), which further disaggregates cultural capital. The author defines threefold manifestation, and in our research we wished to represent cultural capital in all three states, so we linked questions to its incorporated, objectified and institutionalized states. To measure tangible cultural capital, we used the number of books owned, which was presented as a single question related to the

respondent's household. For the measurement of incorporated capital, we used cultural consumption, a type of leisure activity, which appears in the literature as a measure of incorporated cultural capital (Albert et al. 2016, Kovách et al. 2016). For this question, we looked at the frequency of visits to seven cultural sites. The cultural venues surveyed were the following: Museum, exhibition (1), Theatre, standup (2), Ballet, folk dance and other dance performances (3), Opera (4), Cinema (5), Concert of classical music (6), Concert of pop music (7). Last but not least, to measure the institutionalised status of cultural capital, we used the traditional variable of education. To get a more accurate picture, we not only looked at the respondent's education, but also at the education of his/her parents and the education of his/her spouse or partner. In the model, we present cultural capital as a latent variable, with three forms of representation.

For the measurement of **social capital**, we used familiarity with representatives of each profession based on professional literature; for 18 professions the respondent had to state how many people in the profession they knew who could be of help or advice to a greater or lesser extent if needed. An innovative feature of the survey is the inclusion of nationalities in the measurement of social capital, with the number of Chinese and Hungarian acquaintances in each profession being measured separately. Within the topic of **consumer acculturation**, food consumption was examined, so the dietary acculturation measure used in the questionnaire was the Asian Indian Dietary Acculturation Measure (AIDAM) scale (Venkates, 2018). In the wording of the scale, the Indian nationality was replaced with Chinese, thus adapting the scale to the research question. In the AIDAM scale, 10 statements refer to food preparation, 3 statements refer to food purchase, 3 statements refer to religion and culture, and 13 statements refer to taste.

Several validated scales were used to measure **acculturation**. Our background research showed that language proficiency and language use in shopping situations are key determinants of acculturation, so we distinguished two levels for acculturation measurement. The first level was language acculturation, for which we used Chan and So's (2019) Short Acculturation Scale-Urdu version (SAS-U). For the second level of acculturation, we used Zhang and Moradi's (2013) scale, which duplicates the assessment of knowledge and pride by nationality.

### 2 Research methodologies used

### 2.1 Research process

The primary research of the dissertation consisted of two main parts, the qualitative basic research and the quantitative main research. The baseline research also consisted of two parts, the first phase of data collection took place from February to April 2016 and the second phase of data collection took place one year later, from February to April 2017.

In the first phase of the baseline research, we identified the characteristics of culture shock in Hungary, the product scope of consumer acculturation and the differences between countries of origin. In the second phase, the results of the first research were used to develop both the intended sample and the scope of the topics covered. Based on the second set of qualitative findings and the literature review, the questionnaire and theoretical model for the quantitative research were designed. The quantitative research took place in 2021.

### 2.2 Research methodology

### 2.2.1 Methodology of the qualitative research

For our first baseline research, we looked at culture shock and consumer acculturation. Our research "raw material" consisted of 107 semi-structured interviews with foreigners of European, American and Asian origin living in Budapest for at least one year, conducted by students of the intercultural communication course at the Corvinus University of Budapest. We defined a stay of at least one year in Hungary because we wanted to exclude from our research people who had planned to stay for a short period of time - e.g. Erasmus students - because in their case, the short duration of stay does not allow us to talk about acculturation strategies that presuppose a longer period (Berry, 1997). For the sampling procedure, we used quota sampling, with each quota group being a continent, and the number of items in the sample was divided into thirds according to the three continents - America, Asia, Europe. We defined arbitrary sampling within quotas (Horváth et Mitev, 2015). Prior to the interviews, the students received detailed training in interviewing skills, and the topics that would appear during the interviews were the same for all of them and were given to them beforehand. The topics included the perception of culture shock, acculturation and consumer acculturation. Maxqda software was used to analyse the essays.

The second phase of the research was conducted in 2017 and included 113 semi-structured interviews conducted by students of the intercultural communication course at Corvinus University of Budapest. Based on the results of the first phase, the target group of the research was narrowed down to people from Asia, with a quota sample of 50-50% for China and other Asian countries as the countries of origin. The preliminary results also justified the introduction of another quota criterion, namely the length of time spent in the host country, with a 50:50 ratio of persons having lived here for 1-3 years to persons having lived here for more than 3 years. The topics of consumer acculturation, food consumption and the description of the

network of contacts and relationships were more emphasised now in the interviews. We used content analysis to analyse the essays.

### 2.2.2 Methodology of the quantitative research

The target group of the quantitative research was the Chinese people living in Hungary, among whom the research was conducted. The data collection method for the quantitative research was a hybrid method, on the one hand we used online data collection (CAWI) with online questionnaire link distribution, on the other hand we used a drop off pick up survey recruited by interviewers.

Due to the small population size, the difficulty of knowing the exact number of items and the difficulty of free migration within the European Union, it was not possible to construct a sampling frame for the Chinese population in Hungary that would have allowed the use of random sampling. Therefore, a representative sample was not feasible. A non-random sampling procedure was used, including snowball sampling. We did not want to be satisfied with omitting any heterogeneity in the sampling, so we sought to ensure heterogeneity in the sample at the points of initiation of data collection of the snowball sampling.

The questionnaire was available in two languages (at the first question the respondent could choose between the language of the culture of birth and the language of the host culture), so the questionnaire could be completed in Chinese (modern Chinese) and Hungarian. The planned time for completing the questionnaire was 25 minutes.

The hybrid data collection included a total of 340 questionnaire completions, from which all cases of missing data were deleted for analysis, resulting in a final database element count of 162.

Two common types of structural equation modeling (SEM) are covariance-based (CB-SEM) and variance-based (PLS-SEM). In our research, we used the PLS-SEM method, a choice supported by several characteristics. On the one hand, the use of PLS-SEM does not require a normal distribution at any of the measurement levels (Henseler et al., 2009). On the other hand, while CB-SEM can only be used for larger samples - hundreds of elements - PLS-SEM can also be used for samples with a smaller number of elements (Henseler et al., 2009). Due to the target population of our study, the prerequisite of CB-SEM, i.e. a number of hundreds of elements, was not possible.

### 2.3 Research questions and hypotheses

The aim of our analysis is to understand the consumer acculturation of Chinese people living in Hungary.

In examining the process of consumer acculturation, we focus on the social and cultural capital of individuals, and we are interested in the impact of Chinese social capital and Hungarian social capital on the acculturation and consumer acculturation processes. In this paper, we formulate several theses, the evaluation of which is part of the quantitative analysis.

On the basis of the literature review and the underlying research, we have constructed a schematic representation of our theoretical model, which is shown in Figure 1.

1. Figure Planned model – schematic figure (Source: own editing)



**Research question 1:** Does the extent of the immigrants' social capital linked to their birth culture influence their acculturation and consumer acculturation processes?

H1\_1: Chinese social capital has a negative effect on language acculturation levels, i.e. those with stronger Chinese social capital are more likely to use Chinese.

H1\_2: Chinese social capital has a negative effect on the acculturation - knowledge of Hungarian culture factor, i.e. those with stronger Chinese social capital typically have lower levels of knowledge of Hungarian culture.

H1\_3: Chinese social capital has a positive effect on the acculturation - knowledge of Chinese culture factor, i.e. those with stronger Chinese social capital have higher levels of knowledge and skills related to Chinese culture.

H1\_4: Chinese social capital has a positive effect on the acculturation - Chinese pride factor, i.e., those with stronger Chinese social capital have higher Chinese cultural pride.

H1\_5: Chinese social capital has a positive effect on the consumer acculturation - Chinese taste factor, i.e., those with stronger Chinese social capital are more likely to prefer Chinese food as their meals.

H1\_6: Chinese social capital has a negative effect on the consumer acculturation - non-Chinese taste factor, i.e., those with stronger Chinese social capital are more likely to dislike non-Chinese food as their meals.

**Research question 2:** Does the extent of immigrants' social capital linked to their host culture influence their acculturation and consumer acculturation processes?

H2\_1: Hungarian social capital has a positive effect on the level of language acculturation, i.e. those with stronger Hungarian social capital are more likely to use Hungarian.

H2\_2: Hungarian social capital has a positive effect on the acculturation - knowledge of Hungarian culture factor, i.e. those with stronger Hungarian social capital tend to have higher levels of knowledge of Hungarian culture.

H2\_3: Hungarian social capital has a negative effect on the factor acculturation - knowledge of Chinese culture, i.e. those with stronger Hungarian social capital have lower levels of knowledge of Chinese culture.

H2\_4: Hungarian social capital has a negative effect on the acculturation - Chinese pride factor, i.e. those with stronger Hungarian social capital have lower pride in Chinese culture.

H2\_5: Hungarian social capital has a negative effect on the consumer acculturation - Chinese taste factor, i.e. those with stronger Hungarian social capital tend to dislike Chinese food for their meals.

H2\_6: Hungarian social capital has a positive effect on the consumer acculturation - non-Chinese taste factor, i.e. those with stronger Hungarian social capital are more likely to prefer non-Chinese food for their meals.

### 2. Figure: Presentation of hypotheses related to social



capital (Source: own editing)

**Research question 3:** Does the extent of immigrants' cultural capital influence their acculturation and consumer acculturation processes?

H3\_1: Cultural capital has a positive effect on the level of language acculturation, i.e. those with stronger cultural capital are more likely to use Hungarian.

H3\_2: Cultural capital has a positive effect on the acculturation - knowledge of Hungarian culture factor, i.e. those with stronger cultural capital typically have higher levels of knowledge of Hungarian culture.

H3\_3: Cultural capital has a negative effect on the acculturation - knowledge of Chinese culture factor, i.e. those with stronger cultural capital have lower levels of knowledge of Chinese culture.

H3\_4: Cultural capital has a negative effect on the acculturation -Chinese pride factor, i.e. those with stronger cultural capital have lower pride in Chinese culture.

H3\_5: Cultural capital has a negative effect on the consumer acculturation - Chinese taste factor, i.e. those with stronger cultural capital are more likely to dislike Chinese food for their meals.

H3\_6: Cultural capital has a positive effect on the consumer acculturation - non-Chinese taste factor, i.e., those with stronger cultural capital are more likely to prefer non-Chinese food for their meals.



H3 5

FOGY AKK IZLES KINAI

H3 6

FOGY AKK IZLES MAGYAR

**Research question 4:** Does the language acculturation of immigrants influence their acculturation and consumer acculturation processes?

H4\_1: Language acculturation has a positive effect on the acculturation - knowledge of Hungarian culture factor, i.e. those who prefer to use the Hungarian language have a higher level of knowledge of Hungarian culture.

H4\_2: Language acculturation has a negative effect on the acculturation - Chinese culture knowledge factor, i.e. those who prefer to use Hungarian have lower levels of Chinese culture-related knowledge.

H4\_3: Language acculturation has a negative effect on the acculturation - Chinese pride factor, i.e. those who prefer to use Hungarian have lower pride in Chinese culture.

H4\_4: Language acculturation has a negative effect on the consumer acculturation - Chinese taste factor, i.e. those who prefer to use Hungarian tend to dislike Chinese food for their meals.

H4\_5: Language acculturation has a positive effect on the consumer acculturation - non-Chinese taste factor, i.e. those who prefer to use Hungarian prefer non-Chinese food for their meals.

**Research question 5:** Do immigrants' acculturation of knowledge and pride influence their consumer acculturation processes?

H5\_1: The acculturation factor of knowledge of Hungarian culture has a negative effect on the consumer acculturation - Chinese taste factor, i.e., those who are more familiar with Hungarian culture are less likely to prefer Chinese food for their meals.

H5\_2: The acculturation factor of knowledge of Hungarian culture has a positive effect on the consumer acculturation - non-Chinese taste factor, i.e., those who are familiar with Hungarian culture are more likely to prefer non-Chinese food for their meals.

H5\_3: The acculturation factor of knowledge of Chinese culture has a positive effect on the consumer acculturation - Chinese taste factor, i.e., those who know Chinese culture well are more likely to prefer Chinese food for their meals.

H5\_4: The acculturation factor showing knowledge of Chinese culture has a negative effect on the consumer acculturation - non-Chinese taste factor, i.e., those who are well-versed in Chinese culture tend to dislike non-Chinese food for their meals.

H5\_5: The acculturation factor showing pride in Chinese culture has a positive effect on the consumer acculturation - Chinese taste factor, i.e., those who are proud of Chinese culture are more likely to prefer Chinese food for their meals.

H5\_6: The acculturation factor showing pride in Chinese culture has a negative effect on the consumer acculturation - non-Chinese taste

factor, i.e., those who are proud of Chinese culture tend to dislike non-Chinese food for their meals.



## 3 Key findings and conclusions3.1 Results of the qualitative research

The results of the two qualitative studies are presented as summaries. In the qualitative research, we asked questions about identity, acculturation strategies, changes in consumption habits, as well as contact and media consumption. For the identity question, the interviewees gave the importance and place of each culture in the answers – the attachment seen in the acculturation literature.

In addition to cultural distance, personal characteristics and habits also strengthened the identity of the culture of birth. A strong preservation of the birth culture identity was pronounced among persons who maintained *close contact with relatives and friends who stayed at home*, or who spent their daily life with non-Hungarians. The closeness of persons belonging to their birth culture and persons belonging to other non-Hungarian cultures was equally strong in determining the retention of birth culture.

The distance between cultures and personality traits were mutually reinforcing, so that people who had not even begun to learn Hungarian or had stopped learning it became even more isolated from people of their host culture, and the preservation of their native culture became even more pronounced.

All the respondents reported that **food consumption** was the area where they kept their identity the most, and where they could connect the most to their culture and core identity. They most strongly associate tastes and cultural traditions from home with holidays, so those who have been living in Hungary for several decades also preserve their Chinese, Mongolian, Afghan identity through traditional Chinese, Mongolian, Afghan holidays.

It is clear from the interviews that for people with a mixed identity or with the identity of the host culture, there are certain product categories and products that they would definitely choose from the host country. For the majority of the products chosen, the quality due to the short distance is the reason for the country of origin aspect. In the case of vegetables, fruit and meat products, respondents mention that they do not prefer products from outside the host country because of the long distance between countries.

The identities given in the interviews could also have been described by analysing their **media consumption**, so strongly did the interplay between each nation's media consumption and identity emerge. On the one hand, we can talk about content consumption and on the other hand, communication channels, which are difficult to separate in social media products.

Based on qualitative research, we have identified the consumption area, highlighted language acculturation and focused on social capital.

### **3.2** Results of the quantitative research

### 3.2.1 Main features of the model

Not all of the knowledge and pride acculturation scales were usable in the PLS-SEM model, due to the correlation of the Hungarian knowledge and pride acculturation factors we had to remove the acculturation - Hungarian pride factor from the model. The other elements showed a good model fit. There are several indicators used in the literature to characterize the fit of SEM models, the criteria for each indicator and the values that appear in our model are shown in Table 1. The results show that the model fits well.

Index	Acceptance interval	Values typical of the model
CMIN/DF	<3 good fit, <5 acceptable	2,189
CFI	>0,95 good fit, >0,9 acceptable	0,969
RMSEA	<0,8 good fit, 0,08 – 0,1 medium fit	0,086
AGFI	>0,8	0,851

Table 1 Indicators of model fit

Source: own editing based on own results with acceptance interval values based on Nikkhah et al. (2018)

### 3.2.2 Results related to Chinese cultural capital

A significant effect of Chinese social capital is observed on the acculturation of knowledge and pride. The  $\beta$  values associated with the paths are all negative, and their size is nearly the same (Table 2). The negative sign implies that as Chinese social capital increases, the values of the acculturation factors of knowledge and pride decrease. In other words, those with higher Chinese social capital typically have higher levels of knowledge of both Hungarian and Chinese culture and are more proud of Chinese culture than their counterparts with low Chinese social capital.

Table 2 P values and extent of regression paths for Chinese socialcapital

Variable	Hypothesis	β*	Р
AKK_NYELVI	H1_1	,181	,169
AKK_TUDAS_M	H1_2	-,374	,001
AKK_TUDAS_K	H1_3	-,267	,035
AKK_BUSZK_K	H1_4	-,296	,018
FOGY_AKK_KINAI_IZLES	H1_5	,122	,209
FOGY_AKK_MAGYAR_IZLES	H1_6	-,041	,731

Source: own editing, based on own research (\* size of unstandardised regression paths)

It is also noteworthy that Chinese social capital has a positive effect on knowledge related to Hungarian culture, i.e. Chinese social contacts also play an important role in the learning of Hungarian culture.

### 3.2.3 Results related to Hungarian social capital

The significance and  $\beta$  values for the hypotheses related to Hungarian social capital are shown in the following table. Hungarian social capital also shows a significant impact for three paths, but the pairs of variables do not match the pairs of variables of Chinese social capital, so not only in terms of direction and strength can we say that Chinese and Hungarian social capital have different effects, but also in terms of the variables. Hungarian social capital has a significant effect on language acculturation, acculturation - Chinese culture knowledge, and acculturation - Chinese culture pride factors.

Table 3 P values and extent of regression paths for Hungariansocial capital

Variable	Hypothesis	β*	Р
AKK_NYELVI	H2_1	-,599	,002
AKK_TUDAS_M	H2_2	,234	,183
AKK_TUDAS_K	H2_3	,724	,000
AKK_BUSZK_K	H2_4	,748	,000
FOGY_AKK_KINAI_IZLES	H2_5	-,074	,620
FOGY_AKK_MAGYAR_IZLES	H2_6	,058	,752

Source: own editing, based on own research (\* size of unstandardised regression paths)

The  $\beta$  value of the language acculturation path is -0.599, indicating that those with stronger Hungarian social capital are more likely to use Hungarian. The Chinese culture pride ( $\beta$  =0.748) and Chinese culture knowledge ( $\beta$  =0.724) acculturation variables are directly affected by Hungarian social capital, with positive  $\beta$  values for both variables, indicating that Hungarian social capital reduces the pride associated with Chinese culture and reduces the level of Chinese culture knowledge almost to the same extent.

### 3.2.4 Results related to cultural capital

Cultural capital shows a significant relationship only for one hypothesis, language acculturation.

 Table 4 P values and size of regression paths for cultural capital

Variable	Hypothesis	β*	Р
AKK_NYELVI	H3_1	,384	,004
AKK_BUSZK_K	H3_4	-,050	,637
AKK_TUDAS_K	H3_3	-,133	,234

Variable	Hypothesis	β*	Р
AKK_TUDAS_M	H3_2	,176	,102
FOGY_AKK_MAGYAR_IZLES	H3_6	,238	,052
FOGY_AKK_KINAI_IZLES	H3_5	,060	,473

Source: own editing, based on own research (\* size of unstandardised regression paths)

The  $\beta$  value for the relationship is 0.383, indicating that individuals with high cultural capital are more likely to use the Chinese language.

3.2.5 Results related to language acculturation

For language acculturation, we found three significant relationships, these three are acculturation variables; the consumer acculturation variables are not directly affected by language acculturation.

 Table 30 P values and size of regression paths for language acculturation

Variable	Hypothesis	β *	Р
AKK_TUDAS_M	H4_1	,481	***
AKK_TUDAS_K	H4_2	-,174	,043
AKK_BUSZK_K	H4_3	-,237	,005
FOGY_AKK_KINAI_IZLES	H4_4	,128	,088
FOGY_AKK_MAGYAR_IZLES	H4_5	,117	,202

Source: own editing, based on own research (\* size of unstandardised regression paths)

The  $\beta$  values of language acculturation are negative for the acculturation variables related to Chinese culture, i.e. both knowledge of Chinese culture and pride in Chinese culture are more pronounced for those who prefer to use Chinese. The direction of the impact on

knowledge of Hungarian culture is opposite, with higher levels of knowledge of Hungarian culture among those who prefer to use Hungarian actively or passively.

3.2.6 Results related to knowledge and pride acculturation Last but not least, we examine the impact of knowledge and pride acculturation on consumer acculturation variables, the last set of hypotheses.

 Table 31 P-values and size of regression paths for the knowledge and pride acculturation variables

Variables	Hypothesis	β*	Р
AKK_TUDAS_M -> FOGY_AKK_KINAI_IZLES	H5_1	-,030	,688
AKK_TUDAS_K -> FOGY_AKK_KINAI_IZLES	H5_3	,532	***
AKK_BUSZK_K -> FOGY_AKK_KINAI_IZLES	H5_5	,308	***
AKK_TUDAS_M -> FOGY_AKK_MAGYAR_IZLES	H5_2	,250	,006
AKK_TUDAS_K -> FOGY_AKK_MAGYAR_IZLES	H5_4	,330	,003
AKK_BUSZK_K -> FOGY_AKK_MAGYAR_IZLES	H5_6	,159	,157

Source: own editing, based on own research (\* size of unstandardised regression paths)

Four of the six relationships are considered significant, i.e. four relationships exist. In sum, the Chinese taste variable of consumer acculturation is determined by Chinese acculturation, such as pride and knowledge, while the non-Chinese taste variable of consumer acculturation is influenced by knowledge of the two cultures. Based

on these findings, it can be concluded that increasing familiarity can increase the consumption of non-Chinese products.

#### 3.2.7 Indirect effects

Standardised indirect effects are a good way of comparing the impact of different types of capital in terms of their size. Hungarian social capital has the largest indirect effect on the consumer acculturation Chinese taste variable (0.335), with Hungarian social capital having a weakening effect on Chinese taste. The consumer acculturation Chinese taste variable is strengthened by cultural capital (-0.109) and Chinese social capital (-0.181), the latter having a stronger effect on Chinese taste than cultural capital.

The consumer acculturation non-Chinese taste variable is also affected by Hungarian social capital, weakening it (0.173). Chinese social capital also strengthens the variable consumer acculturation non-Chinese taste (-0.158), which overall shows that Chinese social capital strengthens consumer acculturation towards both cultures, creating a stronger emotional attachment, while Hungarian social capital creates a kind of cultural distance and weakens both consumer acculturation variables.

### 3.2.8 Theoretical and practical contribution

In this dissertation, at the end of the review of the literature on consumer acculturation, we have presented an extended version of the basic model associated with Penaloza (1989), which we have drawn up on the basis of the review. As a result of our primary research, we can say that both Chinese and Hungarian social capital have an impact on the consumer acculturation process through their direct effect on acculturation. Cultural capital also had an impact on the process. Therefore, the added value of our research in the literature is in understanding the process of consumer acculturation. In Figure 5, we have displayed our research findings in the summary figure of the literature - types of capital.

The research methodology was also new, which was introduced in the measurement of social capital. Social capital was not surveyed as a whole, as it appears in the literature, but was measured along the two cultural groups in order to examine immigrant groups.

The results can be put to practical use in several areas, with the linguistic results being valuable for retailers and the consumer acculturation results for brand owners.



5. Figure. Complementary figure of the consumer acculturation literature (Source: own editing)

# 3.2.9 Limitations of the research and possible research directions

One of the limitations of our research is the lack of representativeness in quantitative research. Since we do not have reliable data on the Chinese population living in Hungary that would allow us to know the exact number and internal proportions of the population, it is not possible to collect representative data. If an accurate description of the Chinese minority becomes available in the future, the research will have to be repeated. Furthermore, in the case of social capital, occupational weights have not been established and a later survey is needed to establish the weights.

The topic is rich and there are many research opportunities and directions, but we will highlight the most important ones. In order to refine the measurement of social capital, we also propose to measure global social capital and to examine the relationship between the three types of social capital in a future research project. Based on our results related to language acculturation - barriers to product knowledge and its effect - we suggest identifying important product-related information in a future research, which could reduce the cost of resolving language differences.

To further validate our findings, we propose to repeat the research in other countries, also among the Chinese population. Alternatively, repeating the research among other cultural groups may also yield valuable results.

### 4 Key citations

- Albert F. Dávid B. Kmetty Z. Kristóf L. Róbert P. Szabó A. (2017) Mapping the Post-communist Class Structure: Findings from a New Multidimensional Hungarian Class Survey. East European Politics and Societies, 0888325417739954. <u>http://dx.doi.org/10.1177/0888325417739954</u>
- Askegaard, Søren, Eric J. Arnould, and Dannie Kjeldgaard (2005), "Postassimilationist Ethnic Consumer Research: Qualifications and Extensions," Journal of Consumer Research, 32 (1), 160–70.
- Berry, John W. (1997), "Immigration, Acculturation, and Adaptation," Applied Psychology: An International Review, 46 (1), 5–68.
- Bourdieu, Pierre (2010): Gazdasági tőke, kulturális tőke, társadalmi tőke. In: In: Angelusz R. – Éber M. Á. – Gecser O.: Társadalmi rétegződés olvasókönyv: TÁMOP 2010-201. ELTE. Budapest. Available at: file:///C:/Users/Lenovo/Downloads/0010\_2A\_19\_Tarsadalmi\_rete gzodes\_olvasokonyv\_szerk\_Gecser\_Otto.pdf
- Chan, N.S.D. So, K.W.W. (2019). 'Measuring Acculturation of Pakistani Women: A Psychometric Evaluation of Urdu Version of the Short Acculturation Scale'. Asia-Pacific Journal of Oncology Nursing. Vol. 6 Issue 4.
- Cleveland, M. and Laroche, M. (2007) 'Acculturaton to the global consumer culture: Scale development and research paradigm', Journal of Business Research, 60(3), pp. 249–259. doi: 10.1016/j.jbusres.2006.11.006.

- Cleveland, M., Laroche, M. and Takahashi, I. (2015) 'The Intersection of Global Consumer Culture and National Identity and the Effect on Japanese Consumer Behavior', Journal of International Consumer Marketing, 27(5), pp. 364–387. doi: 10.1080/08961530.2015.1014281.
- Henseler, J. Christian, M. R. SINKOVICS, R. R. [2009]: The Use of Partial Least Squares Path Modeling in International Marketing. Advances in International Marketing. Vol. 20. pp. 277–319.
- Horváth Dóra Mitev Ariel (2015) 'Alternatív kvalitatív kutatási kézikönyv'. Alinea Kiadó, Budapest
- Gupta, N. (2016) 'Measuring Consumer Acculturation Discussion on a Prospective Approach', Marketing Science & Inspirations, 11(2), pp. 33–41. Available at: http://search.ebscohost.com/login.aspx?direct=true&db=bth&AN= 117172137&site=eds-live
- Kovách Imre Hajdu Gábor Gerő Márton Kristóf Luca Szabó Andrea (2016): A magyar társadalom integrációs és rétegződésmodelljei. Szociológiai Szemle 26(3): 4–27
- Nikkhah, M., Heravi-Karimooi, M., Montazeri, A. et al. Psychometric properties the Iranian version of Older People's Quality Of Life questionnaire (OPQOL). Health Qual Life Outcomes 16, 174 (2018). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12955-018-1002-z
- Penaloza, L. (1989) ,"Immigrant Consumer Acculturation", in NA -Advances in Consumer Research Volume 16, eds. Thomas K. Srull, Provo, UT : Association for Consumer Research, Pages: 110-118.
- Peñaloza, L. (1994), "Atravesando Fronteras/border crossings: a critical ethnographic exploration of the consumer acculturation of Mexican immigrants", Journal of Consumer Research, Vol. 21 No. 1, pp. 32-54.

- Phinney, J. S. et al. (2001) 'Ethnic Identity, Immigration, and Well-Being: An Interactional Perspective', Journal of Social Issues, 57(3), p. 493. Available at: <u>http://search.ebscohost.com/login.aspx?direct=true&db=a9h&AN=</u> 5487113&site=eds-live
- Samovar, L.A. Porter, R. E. McDaniel, E.R. (2013): Communication between cultures. Eighth Editon. Wadsworth, Cengage Learning. Boston. ISBN-13: 978-1-111-34910-3, ISBN-10: 1-111-34910-X
- Venkatesh, S.- Weatherspoon, L. (2018). 'Reliability and validity of an Asian Indian Dietary Acculturation Measure (AIDAM)'. Health Education & Behavior Vol. 45(6) 908-917 DOI: 10.1177/1090198118775479
- Zhang, N. Moradi, B. (2013). Asian American acculturation and enculturation: Construct clarification and measurement consolidation.' The Counseling Psychologist, 41, 750-790

### **Internet sources**

Bevándorlási statisztika 2020:

http://www.bmbah.hu/index.php?option=com\_k2&view=item&lay out=item&id=177&Itemid=1232&lang=hu Letöltési idő: 2021.09.02.

### 5 Publications Magazine articles:

Bogáromi, Eszter ; Hortay, Olivér ; Pillók, Péter: A klímaváltozás szerepe a magyar lakosság jövőtől való félelmében REPLIKA : 114 pp. 157-169. , 13 p. (2020)

Malota, Erzsébet ; Gyulavári, Tamás ; Bogáromi, Eszter: "Az vagy, amit megeszel": A hazai fogyasztók egészséges táplálkozással kapcsolatos percepciói és attitűdjei. VEZETÉSTUDOMÁNY 50 : 1 pp. 80-88., 9 p. (2019)

Bogáromi, Eszter: A médiahasználat hatása az identitásra és a fogyasztói akkulturációra az élelmiszerfogyasztás területén. MEDOK 2019 : 3 pp. 79-94., 16 p. (2019)

Bogáromi, Eszter ; Malota, Erzsébet: Kulturális sokk és fogyasztói akkulturáció - kétirányú, interdiszciplináris megközelítésben. VEZETÉSTUDOMÁNY 48 : 4 pp. 6-17. , 12 p. (2017)

Bogáromi, Eszter ; Máth, András: Sokforrású adatbázis-építés – buktatók, nehézségek, megoldási kísérletek. EDUCATIO 24 : 3 pp. 86-97., 12 p. (2015)

## Technical books, book chapters and studies in reviewed conference publications:

Bogáromi Eszter – Wurm Viktor: Miért nem csak a pénz számít? Bourdieu-i tőketípusok a magyar társadalomban. In: Kollár, Dávid; Pillók, Péter (szerk.) Értékelve: Társadalmi útikalauz stopposoknak. Budapest, Magyarország : Századvég Kiadó (2021) p. 309

Bogáromi, Eszter: Egy kínai egészség- és sportközpont kialakításának kulturális dimenziói. In: Malota, Erzsébet (szerk.) Marketing nemzetközi színtéren : Esettanulmányok a hazai és külföldi piacokról. Budapest, Magyarország : Alinea Kiadó, (2015) pp. 169-174., 6 p.

Bogáromi, Eszter: Dél-Dunántúl – Regionális Ifjúsági Helyzetjelentés. In: Nagy, Ádám; Székely, Levente (szerk.) Harmadrészt : Magyar Ifjúság 2012 regionális helyzetelemzések. Budapest, Magyarország : ISZT ALapítvány, (2015) pp. 295-342., 48 p.

Boreczky, Ágnes ; Bogáromi, Eszter: Tanárok demográfiai és szocializációs jellemzői és multikulturális nézetei. In: Gordon, Győri János (szerk.) Tanárok interkulturális nézetei és azok hatása az osztálytermi munkára: Kutatási eredmények. Budapest, Magyarország : ELTE Eötvös Kiadó, (2014) pp. 23-40., 18 p.

Bogáromi, Eszter ; Máder, Miklós Péter: Úton az önfoglalkoztatás felé. In: Nagy, Á; Székely, L (szerk.) Másodkézből: Magyar ifjúság, 2012. Budapest, Magyarország : Ifjúságügy Szakértőinek Társasága Alapítvány, (2014) pp. 175-194., 20 p.

Bogáromi, Eszter ; Malota, Erzsébet: A boldogság hatása a migránsokkal szemben kialakult véleményekre. In: Bíró-Szigeti, Szilvia; Petruska, Ildikó; Szalkai, Zsuzsanna; Kovács, István; Magyar, Mária (szerk.) Az Egyesület a Marketing Oktatásért és Kutatásért XXI. országos konferenciájának tanulmánykötete : Budapest, 2015. augusztus 27-28. Budapest, Magyarország : Budapesti Műszaki Egyetem (2015) pp. 453-462., 10 p.

Malota, Erzsébet ; Bogáromi, Eszter: "Erasmus love: egymillió baba" – Személyes- és interkulturális attitűdök és kompetenciafejlődés a külföldi tanulmányok során. In: Bíró-Szigeti, Szilvia; Petruska, Ildikó; Szalkai, Zsuzsanna; Kovács, István; Magyar, Mária (szerk.) Az Egyesület a Marketing Oktatásért és Kutatásért XXI. országos konferenciájának tanulmánykötete : Budapest, 2015. augusztus 27-28. Budapest, Magyarország : Budapesti Műszaki Egyetem (2015) pp. 442-452., 11 p.

### **Conference presentations:**

Eszter, Bogáromi ; Viktor, Wurm: Don't worry eat happy! Dietary habits and their connection to well-being (2020), 9th European Conference on Sensory and Consumer Research - Eurosens 2020, 13-16 December 2020, oral presentation 13 december 2020 and poster

Eszter, Bogáromi ; Tina, Timea Kásler: Marketing foods to children: How packaging and product placement affect the product preferences of children and the buyer behaviour of their parents in the food industry (2019) konferenciaelőadás, 13th Pangborn Sensory Science Symposium, 28 July - 1 August 2019, Edinburgh, UK, Poster session 1,